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October 25, 1988

Case Number 88134.A
CONFIDENTIAL

Dear [HEENREI

In a letter to you dated September 29, 1988
{enclosed), the Executive Director of our staff
conveyed to your office, our tentative opinion
concerning the gift provisions of the Ethics
Ordinance and their potential application to your
recent trip to§ gwotbe covmibriy. 4

In that opinion we state that, based on the
information we received from your office (as
summarized in our opinion letter of September 29),

your acceptance of hosting and travel expenses
from the City of R-* and*
(ompony B violated no provision of the Ethics

Ordinance and that the Ordinance does not require
written disclosure of your acceptance of these
benefits. In that letter, we stressed that these
conclusions were contingent on the specific
circumstances described to us about your trip. We

- . as we as your participation in a
number of public ceremonies and meetings with

officials represented opportunities for
promoting trade and cultural relations between
Chicago and cities, and that therefore
your participation in these events represented a
legitimate use of your public office.

As discussed in our opinion letter, we believe
that these and other circumstances of your trip
meet the conditions, specified in Section 26.2-
4(d)(iv) of the Ethics Ordinance, under which the
acceptance of travel and reasonable hosting by
City officials is acceptable. And, we have held
in this case, that benefits such as reasonable
hosting which are explicitly allowed under Section
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26.2-4(d) of the Ethics Ordinance are not subject to the dis-
closure requirement applicable to items accepted on behalf of the
City. (This requirement is established in Section 26.2-4(f).)

At its meeting on October 18, 1988, the Board formally approved
these conclusions. In this letter of confirmation, we wish to
emphasize two further points with respect to our opinion. First,
the p051t10n we have reached concerns the status of your par-
ticipation in the trip toq and does not extend to the
status of other participants under the Ordinance. The present
oplnlon makes no judgment with respect to the acceptance of
benefits by other Chicago officials and employees.

Secondly, we believe that in cases where there is any qguestion
concerning the appl;cab111ty of the Ordinance to certain

travel arrangements, it would be desirable for your office to
request an advisory opinion prior to the use or acceptance of
these benefits. Although making such requests is not required by
the Ordinance, such measures would provide you with guidance
concerning the status of certain actions under the Ordinance.

We appreciate your inquiry and hope that we have sufficiently
addressed_ our question concerning your participation in the trip
gy If you have further questions, please do not hesitate

toycontact us,

Sincerely,

/ /,
- S. Brandzel

Chairman

A SR
‘Harriet McCullough
Executive Director
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September 29, 1988

Dear KENNNNENENENY:

Your office
determine whether the Ethics Ordinance,

26.2 of the Municipal Code of Chicago, required
disclosure of the travel and hosting you received

requested an advisory opinion to
Chapter

to § Civy R, Bagsed on a review of the
information we have received from your office
concerning this trip, the Board of Ethics deter-
mined that your acceptance of reasonable travel
and hosting would be acceptable under the Ethics
Ordinance and that no requirement exists, within
the language of the Ordinance, for disclosing this
incidence of reasonable travel and hosting.
However, we must emphasize that the Board re-
stricts this conclusion to particular facts of the
case and the relationship between the trip Hai7Y R

and your responsibilities as a representa-
tive of the City of Chicago.

In a telephone conversation with a member of the
Ethics Board Staff your office stated that you and

several other representatives of the City visited
city R i ' a_gue

W co- s~ Epand covg |

co. B 'furnished all expenses for travel and City }

urnished accommedations and ground transpor-
tation during your visit.

1 ciry R hosted several events for
you, members of your delegation, and public
officials in CiTy R . You were invited to make
this trip and nmarticipate in these events in your

capacity as (4 civy ormcAL NN

Section 26.2-4 of the Ethics Ordinance contains
provisions which restrict the receipt of gifts and
benefits by City employees and officials. The key
provisions can be summarized as follows: Section
26.2-4(a) forbids the acceptance of anonymous

gifts. Section 26.2-4(b) prohibits the acceptance
of gifts or benefits of any kind if there is an

HEM
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understanding between donor and reci
influence the latter's actions in Cit

4(c) prohibits City employees fiom accepting giftas from City
contractors whose business agreements with the City might be
substantially affected by the employee's governmental decisions.
Section 26.2-4(f) allows City officials and employees to accept
benefits on behalf of the City but requires that these be
reported to the City's Board of Ethics and to the City Comp-
troller. Each of these restrictions would apply generally to the
acceptance of "anything of value" including travel and hosting
expenses. However Section 26.2-4(d) of the Ordinance explicitly
allows certain benefits, such as reasonable travel and hosting

related to City business, to be exempt from the restrictions of
Section 26.2~4 except for those set forth in subsections (a) and
(b) cited above.

pient that such gifts will
Y government., Section 26.2-

Section 26.2-4(d) states (in part) that: “Except as prohibited
in subsections (a) and (b), nothing in this Section 26.2-4 shall
prohibit any person from giving or receiving: (i) an award
publicly presented in recognition of public service; (ii)
commercially reasonable loans made in the ordinary course of the
lender's business; (iii) political contributions, provided they
are reported to the extent required by law; (iv) reasonable
hosting, including travel and expenses, entertainment, meals or
refreshments furnished in connection with public events,

a -
pearances or ceremonies related to official City business, ‘;f
furnished by the sponsor of such public event."”

The Board interprets this proviso language (cited above) to mean
that although awards, commercially reasonable 1loans, political
contributions, and reasonable hosting, including travel, are
subject to the restrictions set forth in subsections 26.2-4(a)
and (b), they are not benefits which can be interpreted as
"gifts" restricted under the remaining paragraphs and subsections
of Section 26.2-4, Unless the types of benefits described in
subsection (d) are contrary to the provisions of subsections (a)
and (b), they are both allowable and are not subject to the
disclosure requirement set forth in subsection (f), which
concerns only gifts accepted on behalf of the City. However, to
exclude hosting and travel from the "Gift" requirements it must
meet the conditions outlined in Section 26.2-4(d)(iv):

(1) the expenses are furnished in connection with
a public event or ceremony;

(2) the public event or ceremony is related to
official City business;

(3) the expenses are furnished by the sponsor of
such public event; and

(4) the expenses are xe'asonable.
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Thé circumstances of the &0 1

g8y trip, based on information your
office gave us, appear to meet all of the conditions for acce

table hosting as outlined above. The expenses were furnished gn
connection with public events, insofar as the trip $nvolved
ceremonies with other public officials and members of the LscAnoy
community aimed at developing relations and further promoting
cultural relations between LocAnoNRand Chicago. Secondly, these
public events are directly related to

your duties as A CiornoaL
insofar as you are AN OTFIGIAL ReEPRESENTATIVE

) " 'of the City of
Chicago. Finally, the expenses which included travel and

accommodations were furnished by the event sponsor and these
expenses were "reasonable” in the sense that they did not exceed
what was necessary to achieve the stated purpose of the trip.

As discussed above, reasonable hosting and travel by language of
the Ordinance would be excluded from the category of gifts which
are prohibited or which require disclosure. Therefore, based on
the information you have provided us, the Board believes that it
was permissible under the Ordinance for you to accept the travel
and hosting benefits described here and that the acceptance of
these gifts does not require written disclosure pursuant to
section 26.2~4(d) of the Ordinance. However, the Board notes
that public officials may not accept hosting and travel expenses
unless benefits meet the conditions of “reasonable hosting* as
enumerated above. Hosting and travel failing to meet the
conditions would be interpreted as gifts with all the restric-
tions and requirements stated in Section 26.2-4. This opinion is
issued pursuant to the policy regarding a request for immediate
and emergency advisory opinions. The full Board will review this
decision at the meeting scheduled October 18, 1988. Subsequent

thereto, you will receive a letter regarding this matter from the
Board Chairman, Sol Brandzel.

We appreciate this inquiry and would welcome any further requests
for advisory opinions regarding the application of the Ethics

Ordinance. 1If you have further questions concerning this matter,
please contact the Board at 744-9660. ’

Sincerely,
Barriet McCullough
Executive Director




